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7 January 2022 

 

BY EMAIL ONLY - KORegan@mores.ie 

 

Dear Kevin, 

 

Just to address your concerns before you submit the further information to the EPA on 7 January 2022. 

 

1. Abandonment of the application. In our opinion, the EPA could not legally conclude that the 

application was abandoned. We are instructed that there is no intention to abandon that application 

and that this has been conveyed to the EPA.  The EPA’s decision to have recent meetings with your 

client on the 8th July 2021 and on the 21st December 2021 to discuss the on-going application and 

agreeing different deadlines for the submission of information of the 30th November 2021 and 7th 

January 2022 stops them from now concluding that the application is abandoned. There are other 

reasons too but we are so confident in this opinion that we do not feel further research is justified. 

2. Re the re-configuration of onsite drainage network to ensure all storm water from the Site will drain 

into the expanded ICW and the installation of a new large scale interceptor to replace two existing 

interceptors to improve the quality of the storm water discharging to the wetlands. We consider 

that those works are exempted works under the Planning and Development Regulations 2001-2021 

provided the limitations on the exemption are satisfied under (CLASS 21 (a) exempts works 

constituting (ii) the provision, rearrangement, replacement or maintenance of sewers, mains, pipes, 

cables or other apparatus).  

The replacement of the interceptors is doubly exempted under Class 21(a) being the provision 

or replacement of plant and apparatus. Apparatus is defined as equipment. 

The limitations on these exemptions are: 

 Any such development shall not materially alter the external appearance of the 

premises of the undertaking.   

 

 



 

 The height of any plant or machinery, or any structure in the nature of plant or 

machinery, shall not exceed 15 metres above ground level or the height of the plant, 

machinery or structure replaced, whichever is the greater. 

Since we are instructed that the drainage works are largely underground and the interceptors 

less than 15 metres high, it is clear that these limitations are observed. 

 We are instructed that the storm water will be discharged to the wetlands and not discharged 

to any European site and that the effects of possible discharges of storm waters from the 

wetlands to the protected river have been subjected to an appropriate assessment by the 

planning authority and deemed not to have a significant adverse effect on the integrity of any 

European site by Kilkenny County Council. [See Planning Register No 19/235.] 

In addition, these drainage works were envisaged in the application for planning permission for 

the wetlands and in the planning permission for them granted. See Planning Register No 19/235. 

Condition 6(d) of this planning permission provides “No discharges of environmental 

significance shall be made from the development during the operational phases to the surface 

water drains or to the River Barrow.” Consequently, discharges from the wetlands are 

regulated and have been subject to AA.  

3. Re the decommissioning and removal of Dryer 6. Decommissioning of plant and equipment is 

a standard activity at any industrial facility and planning permission is not required for this 

normal industrial activity. If it were, industrialists would have to apply for planning permission 

to remove plant and equipment.  

4. Installation of replacement Dryer 6. We understand that works are ongoing and scheduled to 

be completed in the next few weeks. These works are exempted development under CLASS 21 

of the Planning and Development Regulations 2001-2021 provided the limitations on the 

exemption are satisfied. . CLASS 21 (a) — (iii) the installation or erection by way of addition 

or replacement of plant or machinery, or structures in the nature of plant or machinery. 

Provided: 

 Any such development shall not materially alter the external appearance of the 

premises of the undertaking.  

 

 The height of any plant or machinery, or any structure in the nature of plant or 

machinery, shall not exceed 15 metres above ground level or the height of the plant, 

machinery or structure replaced, whichever is the greater. 



 

We are instructed that the maximum height of the former dryer and associated structures 

including the conveyors / enclosures that need to be replaced is 24.9M and that the maximum 

height of the replacement dryer and associated structures including the stacks will be 24.5M 

i.e. not higher than the replaced structure. The height limitations on the exemption would be 

met in this case also. 

 

5. It should also be noted that the legislation is in place that would allow the EPA during the 

licencing process to improve the environmental performance of an activity without obliging the 

licensee to get a new planning permission if some development is proposed during the licensing 

process which is not exempted or covered by a planning application or permission. See Scannell 

Environmental and Land Use Law (2006), at para 11-123. Any development required by such 

a condition in an EPA licence is exempted development under Regulation 7(1) of the Planning 

and Development Regulations 2001-21. Given the complexities of upgrading such an historic 

site, this may be an option that would be worthwhile to engage with the EPA on. Regulation 

7(1) provides that the following are exempted development: 

7.       (1)     Works consisting of or incidental to the carrying out of development 

referred to in section 86(4) of the Environmental Protection Agency Act, 1992 (No. 7 

of 1992) for the purpose of giving effect to a condition attached to a licence or revised 

licence granted by the Environmental Protection Agency under Part IV of the said Act 

shall be exempted development. 

Development referred to in section 86(4) includes “(d) in addition to conditions that 

may be, or are required to be, attached to a licence or revised licence by reason of 

the foregoing or any other provision of this Part, enable the Agency to attach to a 

licence or revised licence in respect of a specified class or classes of activity such 

conditions as the Agency considers appropriate in the circumstances”. 

If you have any other matters for consideration, contact me by phone. Good luck with the 

application. 

 

Best wishes, 

 

Dr Yvonne Scannell 

Environmental and Planning Group, Arthur Cox, Solicitors 

Ph: 087 903 9666 

https://www.irishstatutebook.ie/1992/en/act/pub/0007/index.html
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